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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I'd like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5                 Joining me this morning are Council

          6  members and Committee member Mike McMahon, Christine

          7  Quinn, Larry Seabrook and Al Vann.

          8                 We have non-separate items on the

          9  agenda, so I'd like to move through this

         10  expeditiously.

         11                 The first item, which is Land Use No.

         12  462, C020488 ZMX. An application by Hasan Biberaj,

         13  for an amendment of the zoning map, establishing

         14  within an existing R6 district a C1-2 district,

         15  bounded by a line 100 feet northerly of Bruckner

         16  Boulevard.

         17                 The applicant had indicated to us at

         18  a previous -- at the September 7th meeting that he

         19  was going to withdraw this application. We need an

         20  official letter from the applicant to do that. He

         21  has not done that after repeated phone calls, so we

         22  will do a motion later on to disapprove this

         23  application.

         24                 If there is no one signed up to speak

         25  on the public hearing aspect of it, I will close
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          2  that aspect of the item, okay?

          3                 Move on to Land Use No. 543. C050482

          4  ZMQ. Application very dear to my heart. It is the

          5  rezoning in College Point in my district. And I'll

          6  call on John Young, Queens Director of City

          7  Planning, to give the presentation.

          8                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair

          9  Avella, Council members, ladies and gentlemen.

         10                 My name is John Young, and I'm the

         11  Director of the Queens Office of the Department of

         12  City Planning.

         13                 On behalf of City Planning Director,

         14  Amanda Burden, I'm very pleased to be here this

         15  morning to present the Department's proposal to

         16  provide an overdue update for the zoning

         17  designations in College Point, Queens.

         18                 For this proposal, the Department has

         19  developed a carefully delineated and comprehensive

         20  rezoning strategy to address the particular concerns

         21  of residents regarding development trends and needs

         22  in this distinct community.

         23                 As we will explain, the proposal is

         24  part of the Department's efforts to support orderly

         25  growth that curbs inappropriate development and
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          2  ensures that future development will reinforce the

          3  qualities that have been critical to the success of

          4  this neighborhood.

          5                 I know that this is an area that's

          6  very dear to the Subcommittee Chair's, you know,

          7  district concerns, but for those of you who are

          8  unfamiliar with College Point, I would like to

          9  provide you with a brief background.

         10                 College Point is a peninsula and a

         11  bustling town on the north shore of Queens County

         12  during the 19th century, taking advantage of its

         13  ample East River and Flushing Bay Waterfront for

         14  manufacturing, recreational and residential uses.

         15                 Inland areas were developed with

         16  blocks of wood frame and masonry, detached

         17  residences fronting on relatively narrow streets,

         18  with retail and service activities located primarily

         19  along College Point Boulevard, which reserved as the

         20  town's main street.

         21                 Marshland to the south of the town

         22  isolated the peninsula from Queens for much of its

         23  development history, although Long Island railroad

         24  service ran to the town until the 1930s.

         25                 Today College Point has a population
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          2  of 25,000 residents, and it retains the feel of a

          3  small town. Much of its traditional Land Use pattern

          4  remains to this day. It's primarily shaded in yellow

          5  which indicates one- and two-family residences. The

          6  purple areas are the industrial areas along the

          7  waterfront, and then on the areas that were formerly

          8  marshland south and east of the town that have been

          9  drained and are now part of the College Point

         10  corporate and industrial park.

         11                 Twentieth Century residential

         12  development has been predominantly low density,

         13  single- and two-family houses, but recent trends

         14  have seen increasing replacement of older, detached

         15  buildings with semi-attached, attached and

         16  multi-family developments.

         17                 In recent years the population growth

         18  in the neighborhood has outpaced the growth of the

         19  City and the rest of Queens as a whole.

         20                 The current rezoning effort was

         21  initiated by hundreds of area residents writing

         22  letters to the Mayor and other elected officials, as

         23  well as City Planning Director Burden, expressing

         24  their wishes to prevent over-development that was

         25  occurring in the community, and seeking a
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          2  comprehensive update of the neighborhood zoning,

          3  much of which has been unchanged since 1961.

          4                 The College Point area that we're

          5  rezoning is primarily zoned R3-2 and R 4. And these

          6  areas on the map are shaded in pink, indicating that

          7  they are general residence district that allow a

          8  broad range of housing, including multi-family and

          9  attached developments.

         10                 The difference between these zones is

         11  basically one of floor ratio, where the maximum

         12  floor ratio in the R3-2 area is 0.6 and the maximum

         13  floor ratio in the R4 zoning, which is the

         14  predominant zone in the residentially developed area

         15  of the community has a maximum floor ratio of 0.9.

         16                 Additionally because College Point

         17  has several blocks where the in-filled provisions of

         18  the zoning resolution can apply, development of lots

         19  with R4 zoning are actually allowed a maximum of FAR

         20  of 1.35. A 50 percent increase in floor area.

         21                 Recent development within the R4

         22  district has increasingly seen detached residents

         23  replaced by rows of attached two- and three-story

         24  structures with front yards often used for driveways

         25  and for parking.
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          2                 Also, attached and semi-detached

          3  buildings have been built against the side walls of

          4  existing detached structures. Development within the

          5  R3-2 district includes also new semi-detached and

          6  attached two-family buildings.

          7                 We have a range of photos that show

          8  these developments that have been occurring in the

          9  area. And these developments are generally

         10  out-of-character with existing residential context.

         11                 The rezoning proposal has been

         12  developed to reinforce existing building types and

         13  ensure future development who maintain the

         14  prevailing scale and density appropriate to its

         15  setting and surrounding context.

         16                 The proposed rezoning would preserve

         17  the existing neighborhood scale and character with

         18  lower density contextual districts. These districts

         19  would ensure that new development would be more

         20  consistent with traditional predominantly detached

         21  building types.

         22                 Also several blocks currently zoned

         23  for manufacturing. They're highlighted here in red.

         24  They're at the western end of the community.

         25  Portions of five blocks would be rezoned to reflect
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          2  the predominant residential use. The proposed zoning

          3  for College Point Boulevard would encourage

          4  mixed-use buildings and reinforce its main street

          5  role in the community, and existing commercial

          6  overlays on the boulevard would be changed to

          7  slightly reduced parking requirements to match

          8  existing development patterns on the boulevard.

          9                 Additionally, commercial overlays

         10  would be removed from two block fronts on 18th

         11  Avenue, that have mainly residential uses, and an

         12  overlay would be added to one block front on College

         13  Point Boulevard at 14th Avenue to reflect existing

         14  commercial uses.

         15                 So, this is the rezoning proposal.

         16  And as you can see, the areas are still colored to

         17  reflect the types of housing and density that's

         18  allowed in much of the areas that were zoned R3-2

         19  and R4 are proposed to be replaced with zones that

         20  really allowed predominantly detached residences and

         21  either single-family or one- and two-family

         22  occupancy.

         23                 I just want to briefly review the

         24  proposal for you. So, we have three areas in the

         25  community where an R2 district, R2-A district is
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          2  proposed. The R2-A district is the newest

          3  low-density contextual zone. It was created earlier

          4  this year as part of the Bayside rezoning. And this

          5  district permits only single-family detached homes,

          6  and is proposed for these areas where single-family

          7  detached homes on larger lots predominate.

          8                 The R2-A district allows a maximum

          9  floor ratio of 0.5, and it requires a lot with at

         10  least 40 feet. It also has established, unlike the

         11  existing R2 district, exact building heights and

         12  permit to wall heights, to ensure that the scale of

         13  new development matches the scale of existing

         14  context. And it also places limits on floor area

         15  deductions to again prevent over-scaled development.

         16                 We have an area where the R3-2 zoning

         17  and R4 districts up in the north would be replaced

         18  with an R3-A district. The R3-A district is one that

         19  allows only detached development, occupied by one or

         20  two families, and it has a maximum floor ratio of

         21  0.6, and it would also have a requirement where the

         22  minimum lot would have to be 25 feet, and the front

         23  yards that would be provided by any new development

         24  would have to have a minimum depth of ten feet with

         25  a match of requirement to line up with adjacent
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          2  front yards if those yards are deeper.

          3                 A small R3-1 district is proposed to

          4  replace the R3-2 district right on the edge of

          5  Powell's Cove.

          6                 This district allows one- and

          7  two-family detached or semi-detached development,

          8  and otherwise its regulations are the same as the

          9  R3-2 district which it replaces.

         10                 The principal change, though, is

         11  replacing much of the R4 district with R4-A

         12  designations, mainly for the many blocks to the east

         13  of College Point Boulevard, and an area directly to

         14  the west.

         15                 The R4-A district allows the same

         16  floor area ratio as an R4 district, 0.9., and it

         17  requires the minimum lot width of 30 feet and it

         18  only allows detached development, again, occupied by

         19  one- or two-families.

         20                 This zone is proposed for

         21  approximately half of the lots within the rezoning

         22  area, and it will ensure that future development

         23  reflects the predominant detached character.

         24                 There are areas where there is

         25  semi-detached, as well as detached characters, and
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          2  these areas are proposed to have an R4-1 district.

          3  That's all the way up here at the north. An area at

          4  the east, an area at the south, and a larger area

          5  that includes some of those M zoned areas in the

          6  western portion of the district.

          7                 The R4-1 district allows both

          8  detached and semi-detached one- and two-family

          9  houses, and is proposed for approximately 15 percent

         10  of the rezoning area. It would replace R4 and M1 and

         11  M2-1 zoning districts.

         12                 It allows a maximum floor ratio of

         13  0.9, but it does not allow attached or multi-family

         14  development. And then along College Point Boulevard,

         15  the existing R4 district would be replaced with an

         16  R5-B district. There is an existing stretch at the

         17  southern end of four blocks where that district

         18  currently is, so this is really an extension of that

         19  R5-B district.

         20                 The R5-B district allows attached

         21  multiple family development and has a maximum floor

         22  ratio that's equal to that with the R4 in fill

         23  provisions of 1.35.

         24                 There is, however, a height limit in

         25  this district that's very much similar to the R4
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          2  district, the maximum building height is 33 feet and

          3  the maximum building height in the R4-A district is

          4  35 feet.

          5                 In addition, we're making some modest

          6  changes to the commercial overlays along College

          7  Point Boulevard. They are currently C1-2 and C2-2

          8  overlays. They'll be replaced by C1-3 and C2-3

          9  overlays and generally mapped to a depth of a

         10  hundred feet.

         11                 These overlays again just adjust the

         12  parking requirements to reflect existing

         13  development. There would be a new C1-3 overlay added

         14  at 14th Avenue and College Point Boulevard, and for

         15  two block fronts on 18th Avenue commercial overlays

         16  would be removed to reflect the predominant

         17  residential use.

         18                 Overall, the rezoning proposal seeks

         19  to strengthen the distinct qualities of College

         20  Point and update the area's 44-year-old zoning

         21  pattern to achieve orderly growth, and this change

         22  is very important to the area civic groups, local

         23  institutions, and they have provided critical

         24  guidance for the residents who have been seeking

         25  these zoning changes. Again, it's been the
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          2  Department's privilege to work closely with the

          3  residents and Council Member Avella to shape and

          4  refine this proposal.

          5                 We know it has taken us a fair amount

          6  of time to achieve this effort. It is something that

          7  has been overdue in the area. We certainly could not

          8  have achieved it without the focus and the attention

          9  on all the residents to do it now and to do it

         10  quickly.

         11                 We've been very pleased to receive

         12  expedited reviews and full support from Community

         13  Board 7, as well as Borough President Helen

         14  Marshall. The Planning Commission did make one

         15  modification of the proposal and I just want to

         16  point that out to everyone.

         17                 There were block fronts here at Ninth

         18  Avenue and College Place that had been originally

         19  part of the R2-A district, and the area has been

         20  modified based on testimony that has been presented

         21  to the Planning Commission to keep the R3-A District

         22  that was on these two block fronts, and that

         23  modification has been made.

         24                 We, therefore, hope that you, too,

         25  will support this rezoning proposal that seeks to
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          2  prevent overdevelopment and enhance the special

          3  qualities of College Point.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, John.

          5  This is certainly something that is long awaited in

          6  the College Point community.

          7                 Just for the record and for my

          8  colleagues, the last time the zoning was redone

          9  comprehensively in the City was 1961, and at that

         10  time College Point had the same type of housing

         11  stock that neighboring Whitestone and Bayside had,

         12  but Bayside and Whitestone, for example, got R2,

         13  College Point got R4, which allowed for much greater

         14  density and it has become a disaster in that

         15  community since 1961. This seeks to really make some

         16  substantive changes and stop what has been going on

         17  for decades.

         18                 I appreciate Amanda Burden's work,

         19  and all of the work that you and your staff put

         20  together on this.

         21                 There are actually no people here to

         22  testify on this because everybody expects it to go

         23  ahead, especially with me being the Chairman of this

         24  Committee.

         25                 The one comment I do have is that you
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          2  mentioned the one modification City Planning made --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Tony, there's

          4  no one here to testify because they're sick and

          5  tired of you schlepping them down here to testify on

          6  all these rezonings. They're tired.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Did I allow you

          8  to speak?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, it's

         10  completely out of order.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Wait a second,

         12  we're not done yet.

         13                 You mentioned the one modification

         14  that you did at City Planning's level. We've also

         15  had conversations about another residence, Mr.

         16  Buckley's house, on the southern end of the district

         17  and based upon conversations I've had with

         18  Commissioner Amanda Burden, we will make a

         19  substantive change to the map, a minor modification,

         20  at a future rezoning, rather than make the

         21  modification now and delay this application from

         22  going ahead.

         23                 If there are no questions for my

         24  colleagues, thank you, John.

         25                 We have no one signed up to speak,
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          2  but I can rest assured that this is really something

          3  that the community has been in favor of, and John

          4  actually mentioned it in his testimony. When I was

          5  working with the community to get this off the

          6  drawing board, I suggested that the College Point

          7  Community write letters and City Planning received

          8  600, 600 individual letters, not form letters, not

          9  petitions, individual letters, 600, asking for this

         10  rezoning to be done.

         11                 And I have to also thank the

         12  community board and the Borough President, because

         13  this is another classic example of reducing the

         14  ULURP clock from the six to seven months that it can

         15  normally take into three months.

         16                 With that, we will move on to the

         17  next item, Land Use No. 573. C050171 ZMQ, and a

         18  member to the zoning map, establishing within an

         19  existing R2 district a C1-2 district bounded by

         20  Francis Lewis Boulevard. The applicant is here and I

         21  will call them up to make the presentation.

         22                 While he's coming up, this

         23  application lies within Council Member Weprin's

         24  district.

         25                 MR. KORMAN: Good morning, Chairman

                                                            19

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Avella, and members of the Council. My name is Sol

          3  Korman. I'm an engineer with the Agusta Group, and I

          4  represent the owner of a piece of property that's

          5  involved in this rezoning.

          6                 Basically it's an extension of an

          7  existing commercial overlay that's already there.

          8  It's a 70 foot extension which will allow a piece of

          9  vacant property which has been vacant forever

         10  really, it's never been developed, and will allow

         11  this piece of property to build a two-story

         12  commercial building. I know you have a long agenda.

         13  I will try to be as brief as possible. It's fairly

         14  straightforward. The community board approved it.

         15  The City Planning Commission approved it

         16  unanimously, and really that's the basic outline of

         17  the job.

         18                 The owner of the property is here and

         19  he can give you some of the background. I think he

         20  wishes to testify, and he will give you more details

         21  as to how this thing developed and what the property

         22  is about.

         23                 I'm certainly open to any questions

         24  that you may have on this potential --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, first of
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          2  all, I'm familiar with the application, but I don't

          3  know if my colleagues are. Do you have any materials

          4  that you can show?

          5                 MR. KORMAN: Yes. I do have a

          6  photograph which speaks a lot better than a lot of

          7  maps that don't always show the property.

          8                 The property is a vacant piece of

          9  property. The property is the vacant piece of

         10  property between an existing real estate office and

         11  a large community facility building, medical office

         12  building really, and it's sitting right in the

         13  middle of that thing and it's zoned R2 right now.

         14  R2, as you're well aware, only allows single-family

         15  homes and this property would be very inappropriate

         16  for that type of development, which it was why it

         17  was never developed.

         18                 The zoning lines itself have been

         19  drawn so as not to interfere with any properties

         20  either to the north or to the east which would

         21  infringe on anybody else's property.

         22                 In fact, the 20-foot piece of the

         23  overlay was left off of the original thing so that

         24  the real estate office will remain in the R3 zone

         25  and act as a buffer to the properties to the north.
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          2  That was one of the concerns of the community and we

          3  adjusted that line to accommodate the community.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I notice in the

          5  Borough President's recommendation that it refers to

          6  you and the applicant, I guess, preparing and

          7  signing a restrictive declaration and covenant?

          8                 MR. KORMAN: Covenant really.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What is the

         10  details of that?

         11                 MR. AVROCH: I can go over that for

         12  you.

         13                 MR. KORMAN: Yes, he will. And it's

         14  nothing official that the City has to enforce, but

         15  it's something that will be enforced by the

         16  community, and of course, Mr. Avrok is more than

         17  willing to go along with that, and he will go into

         18  details on that covenant.

         19                 MR. AVROCH: Okay, I'd like to go over

         20  the history of the last -- oh, I'm sorry. My name is

         21  Lawrence Averock. I'm the owner of the property. I'd

         22  like to thank you for giving me your time to listen

         23  today.

         24                 The history of this application and

         25  the land, I had come before you approximately a year
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          2  ago with a different application. It was for a much

          3  larger rezoning. It infringed on residents'

          4  properties to the east and to the north, and even

          5  though it was approved by the Borough President and

          6  the City Planning Commission, the Community Board

          7  had voted 20 to ten against it, and therefore

          8  because of community opposition, Councilman David

          9  Weprin had asked you to recommend not approving the

         10  application.

         11                 At that point, I withdrew the

         12  application and I had asked Councilman Weprin to set

         13  up a meeting for me with James Rogers, who is the

         14  head of the Aubendale Civic Association, and Jerry

         15  Ianese, who is the president of Community Board 11,

         16  which encompasses that area.

         17                 We met in September of 2004, at

         18  Councilman Weprin's Office. We went over all the

         19  concerns that they had and whatever changes they

         20  asked for, I agreed to.

         21                 To give you an idea of the changes,

         22  we reduced the rezoning request to only the 60 by 97

         23  piece of vacant property. Originally it also

         24  included the 20 by 97 piece of property to the north

         25  of that that has my real estate office on it.
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          2                 The reason why we excluded that 20 by

          3  97 is so that it would serve as a buffer between the

          4  vacant land and the residences further north.

          5                 In addition to that, they had asked

          6  that I not rent certain types of establishments. I

          7  agreed to whatever establishments they had asked I

          8  not rent to.

          9                 In addition, they wanted to restrict

         10  the hours of operation of all of the tenants. We had

         11  come to an agreement on that. Also, limit the hours

         12  of garbage pick-up and deliveries to any tenants. We

         13  agreed on that. In addition, to install six foot

         14  high opaque fencing and shrubbs along any lot line

         15  adjacent to private residences. We agreed to that.

         16  And to have no garbage dumpster within 25 feet of

         17  any residence.

         18                 Anything they asked for we agreed to

         19  in the restrictive covenant agreement.

         20                 Subsequent to that, we filed a new

         21  application. We went before Community Board 11. The

         22  vote was 32 to eight with one abstention in favor of

         23  the application this time. Quite overwhelming.

         24                 Borough President then recommended

         25  approval. City Planning Commission also recommended
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          2  approval. And now we're before your community again

          3  with any questions you might have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have none. And

          5  in the meantime, we've been joined by Council

          6  Members Eric Gioia and Melinda Katz.

          7                 Any questions from Committee members?

          8  Thank you, gentlemen.

          9                 MR. AVROCH: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see no one

         11  signed up to speak on the public hearing aspect of

         12  this. Okay, I will close this item, then move on to

         13  the next.

         14                 Next two items, 574 and 575 are

         15  related. C040488 ZMM, and C040489 ZSM. Application

         16  submitted by Witkoff LLC for an amendment of the

         17  zoning map changing from C8-4 district to a C1-9

         18  district, property bounded by East 62nd Street, York

         19  Avenue and other streets, and also for the granting

         20  of a special permit.

         21                 MR. MITZNER: Good morning, Councilman

         22  Avella, Committee members. My name is Marvin

         23  Mitzner. I am a partner in the firm of Kohls and

         24  O'Connor (phonetic), and I'm here representing the

         25  Witkoff Group, who has applied for a zone change on
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          2  York Avenue, between East 61st Street and East 62nd

          3  Street, Manhattan.

          4                 The site in question is currently

          5  zoned C8-4, which is a zone that does not permit

          6  residential occupancy. We are requesting a zone

          7  change to rezone the area on York Avenue between

          8  East 61st Street and East 62nd Street for a distance

          9  of 100 feet west of York Avenue to a C1-9 zoning

         10  district, the C1-9 district is a mixed use district

         11  which has an R 10 equivalent, consistent with the

         12  zoning that you find north of York Avenue on both

         13  sides, and the commercial aspect of the district is

         14  a low density commercial 2 FAR, which allows us to

         15  have ground floor convenience retail for the area

         16  which at this point has none.

         17                 It is an appropriate district in

         18  that, also in that it requires a tower on base

         19  construction, which is consistent, contextual with

         20  the other building on the block within the rezoned

         21  area.

         22                 Here are some photographs which show

         23  the existing conditions on that block. The

         24  development site is at the southwest corner of East

         25  61st Street and York Avenue, currently occupied by

                                                            26

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  the former Potamkin site. It consists of a full

          3  coverage 70 foot building, and that would be our

          4  development site.

          5                 Also included in the rezoned area is

          6  an existing cooperative at 440 East 62nd Street.

          7  This building was constructed prior to the C8-4

          8  zoning district, and as such is currently a

          9  non-conforming use. The zone change would make that

         10  use conforming.

         11                 By virtue of the rezoning

         12  application, it would permit us to develop the site,

         13  as we showed here. As we show in this rendering.

         14                 As I indicated, the zoning would

         15  permit us to have convenience retail on the ground

         16  floor. We intend to put a use such as a convenience

         17  food store to service the neighboring community.

         18                 The zoning would also require us to

         19  have a tower on a base. The base for most of the

         20  building would be at five stories, by a quirk of the

         21  zoning where you would join a tall building, this

         22  portion of the building is mandated to be at least

         23  100 feet in height.

         24                 So, this wing of the proposed

         25  building is mandated 100 feet or eight stories.
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          2                 The tower, of course, complies with

          3  the tower requirements, the tower and base

          4  construction.

          5                 We have met, the community board has

          6  voted unanimous -- -- one vote short of unanimous in

          7  favor of the application. The Borough President's

          8  office has also approved the application and City

          9  Planning unanimously approved the application.

         10                 In the context of this application

         11  and presenting it to all the public entities, we

         12  also had early discussions with the neighbors at 440

         13  East 62nd Street, which is the building within the

         14  rezoned area. We began those discussions early on in

         15  the process, to continue them throughout.

         16                 We had phone conversations with the

         17  leadership of the Co-Op Board, we met with the

         18  directors of the Board, we even sponsored a session

         19  with all the shareholders where we rented an

         20  auditorium, invited all the shareholders to

         21  participate, and had discussions with them as to

         22  what their concerns may be at that development, and

         23  how we can best accommodate their needs.

         24                 This is an extraordinary effort by a

         25  developer who cares about the neighborhood that he
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          2  develops in. It's something that's out of the

          3  ordinary for a rezoning application. Where, as you

          4  know, the context of the building is not technically

          5  part of the application, but we've taken the extra

          6  step of meeting and discussing this with the

          7  community and we have made certain commitments which

          8  I will go into in detail with you so you can get a

          9  sense as to how far we've gone in terms of trying to

         10  meet the needs of 440 East 62nd Street.

         11                 This drawing shows a plan view of our

         12  proposed building, as it relates to 440 East 62nd

         13  Street.

         14                 The concerns expressed involve units

         15  that are in the courtyard of 440, as well as some

         16  lot-lined windows, they're on the southern facade of

         17  440.

         18                 These are lot-lined windows, which

         19  are not legal for light and air, but exist because

         20  the building, the Potamkin site, did not rise to

         21  that level for those windows.

         22                 Their concern was to try to improve

         23  an increase to the extent possible the amount of

         24  light and air for the units in the courtyard. What

         25  we did in context of our discussions with them, was
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          2  we pulled the tower away from the norther edge of

          3  our property, providing a nine foot corridor at that

          4  point. We also increased our inner court at one

          5  story pulling it back down to about 65 feet, which

          6  enabled the lower floors, in particular to have

          7  improved light and air of what currently exists.

          8  Because you have a 70 foot building at this point,

          9  which blocks a lot of light and air to lower

         10  stories, lower floors of their development, by

         11  creating this one-story courtyard for an extended

         12  distance there is over 100 feet of light and air

         13  from their courtyard above 23 feet in height. This

         14  constitutes a significant improvement for the lower

         15  floors of 440 East 62nd Street.

         16                 We also adjusted the tower and tried

         17  to shave as much as we could at this point to

         18  provide some better views for these units here,

         19  which are really not quite facing the tower. Be

         20  tried to protect as much light and air as possible

         21  in that direction.

         22                 Most significantly, the quirk in the

         23  zoning once again required a 100 foot portion of the

         24  base to extend along York Avenue, and also required

         25  that eight stories to extend all the way out along
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          2  this nine foot separation between our tower and 440

          3  East 62nd Street. So, that would have blocked some

          4  of the lot lined windows that existed, and also

          5  created a diminution in their light and air because

          6  it would have extended beyond this corner of their

          7  building.

          8                 What we did, we engaged in discussion

          9  with the Department of Building, and Howard Zipser,

         10  who represents 440 East 62nd Street was with me at

         11  those meetings, and the Deputy Commissioner is

         12  willing to grant us reconsideration to allow us to

         13  reduce the height of this portion down to one story.

         14                 What that does is it certainly

         15  protects the existing lot lined windows along the

         16  south facade of 440, but also allows some lower

         17  floors of 440 to create new lot-lined windows where

         18  none exists now. It also eliminates some of the loss

         19  of light near this corner of our building.

         20                 More importantly, is that 440 has

         21  asked us to see if we can shift and move the tower

         22  further east. What we have indicated to them is that

         23  at this point we have not done the marketing studies

         24  and the analysis necessary for us to actually design

         25  the tower and design the building. And so we can't
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          2  make commitments beyond that which we've made to

          3  this point, but we did make a commitment to

          4  seriously look at, once we get those marketing

          5  studies done, once we get the units, the mix of

          6  units, the size of units, down and understand the

          7  project better, we will certainly make every effort

          8  to move that tower further east or shave off some of

          9  this portion of the tower to provide even increased

         10  light in there to 440 East 62nd Street.

         11                 And for the Committee's benefit, I

         12  will distribute two letters that we have submitted,

         13  one to the 440 East 62nd Street Corporation, which

         14  commits in writing to what I've just indicated to

         15  you, and I'll read in particular the next to last

         16  paragraph, which talks about an ongoing commitment.

         17                 It says this is also to confirm our

         18  ongoing commitment to try to either further narrow

         19  the west wall of our tower, or shift the entire

         20  tower east, once we have determined the layout of

         21  units in the proposed building. And I have copies of

         22  that letter, which I'd like to distribute to the

         23  Committee.

         24                 The second letter is a letter that

         25  the Witkoff Group addressed to Amanda Burden and the
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          2  City Planning Commission in the course of our

          3  hearings with the City Planning Commission. Once

          4  again, we reconfirmed those changes that we have

          5  made to the tower and the base of our development,

          6  and once again I'll read you the next to the last

          7  paragraph to further state our commitment.

          8                 It says, "Let me state unequivocally

          9  that in the course of developing this project, we

         10  will make every reasonable effort to further slim

         11  the tower and to move, adjust or relocate the

         12  western wall of our tower, to provide a greater

         13  opening between the tower and our west lot line.

         14                 Our promise to 440 stands, we will

         15  maintain a continuing dialogue with them, apprise

         16  them of the progress of our design, and confer with

         17  them before finalizing our plans."

         18                 That letter is signed by Scott Alper

         19  of the Witkoff Group, and I will distribute this

         20  letter also. In context, both these letters

         21  represent an extraordinary effort on the part of the

         22  developer for rezoning applications to address

         23  concerns of the neighboring building and to maintain

         24  an ongoing dialogue, an ongoing commitment, to

         25  address those concerns. And I think that the Witkoff
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          2  Group should be applauded for those efforts.

          3                 As a second aspect to our

          4  application, we're also requesting a special permit

          5  for a public parking garage at the lower levels of

          6  the proposed building, and Jim Davidson, the

          7  architect for the project, will quickly take you

          8  through that.

          9                 MR. DAVIDSON: Good morning. My name

         10  is James Davidson. I'm partner at SLC Architects. We

         11  are the architects of the overall project, as well

         12  as the architects involved with City Planning and

         13  their traffic component in order to assure that the

         14  public parking adheres to all of their best criteria

         15  and it was well received.

         16                 We've worked with their traffic,

         17  in-house traffic consultants and experts and they

         18  felt very confident that this would be a

         19  well-functioning public parking garage, which

         20  adheres to all of their parameters.

         21                 We have kept the curb cut as far away

         22  from the intersection of the streets as possible,

         23  and we have located the curb cut at 61st Street, as

         24  far west as possible, along that portion of the

         25  property that we own with a curb cut that is short
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          2  of the side lot line by two foot six.

          3                 The ramp goes down from grade and

          4  adheres to the 20 foot flat portion and then the

          5  ramp proceeds to go down below grade. It adheres to

          6  the requirements for reservoir parking spaces so

          7  that there is no queuing of cars on the side street,

          8  and assures that all drivers bring their car

          9  directly down to the lower level where they are

         10  greeted by the attendant.

         11                 The layout of the spaces adheres to

         12  the requirements for a free and clear travel of

         13  moving cars so that the attendants can get those

         14  cars out of the way to assure that there is no

         15  queuing out onto the street.

         16                 You'll see that the one over one

         17  parking spaces are located at the perimeter, and

         18  these minimum criteria locate the location of the

         19  core, as you see. The location of the core helps to

         20  configure the tower as it's configured upstairs

         21  because the tower is wrapped around the core.

         22                 As we develop this tower, we will

         23  endeavor to try to assure that the east portion of

         24  the building is as far east as possible and that the

         25  west portion of the building is as far east as
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          2  possible as well. We cannot make any finite

          3  commitments at this point until we've gotten into

          4  the marketing aspects and the layouts of the

          5  project.

          6                 We're very much aware of the need to

          7  do so. And then we have a seller and a subseller.

          8  The subseller follows through as you see. Right over

          9  here with this ramp being directly under the other

         10  ramp and you can see a very clear flow of space.

         11                 That's about it, from the parking

         12  end.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         14  from my colleagues? We do have a number of speakers

         15  signed up on this item.

         16                 Council Member Quinn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just wanted

         18  to doublecheck what the Community Board's position

         19  was? I know you mentioned it.

         20                 MR. MITZNER: The Community Board

         21  voted one vote short of unanimous in favor of the

         22  application.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         25  gentlemen.
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          2                 I might suggest you stand by, too.

          3                 MR. MITZNER: Sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I know you will.

          5                 We have, let's see, one, two, three,

          6  four, five, six -- nine speakers in opposition.

          7  Since there are four chairs up there, I will call

          8  four speakers at a time.

          9                 Cabot Marks, Howard Brumer, Mark

         10  Monroe, and Lisa Berman.

         11                 By the way, this project lies within

         12  Speaker Miller's district.

         13                 The only caveat I have, please, is

         14  I'm not going to time anybody, but you know,

         15  normally it's three minutes per person, so I would

         16  stay within that time frame.

         17                 MR. MARKS: Good morning, Mr.

         18  Chairman, and Committee. My name is Cabot Marks and

         19  I'm the president of East 62nd Street Owners Corp.

         20  And while the Witkoff Group made a very nice

         21  presentation, they have made some concessions over

         22  the months, they haven't spoken to us in probably

         23  going on two to three months.

         24                 The Community Board, the Borough

         25  President's Office and the Planning Commission did
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          2  approve this plan but they approved it with a

          3  specific statement that they work with us, that they

          4  address our concerns that were of interest to us

          5  that benefitted them.

          6                 Our biggest concern from day one is

          7  the fact that our tenants, our shareholders are

          8  going to be in a dungeon in the back of the building

          9  and this affects 57 apartments. As we're going to

         10  show you in a couple of minutes, we have a building

         11  directly to the west of us. We have this building

         12  now going up directly south of us. Those apartments

         13  are going to be shut in. They're going to get no

         14  light, they're going to get no air and the quality

         15  of life of our shareholders is going to be

         16  dramatically affected.

         17                 We've gotten some lip service that

         18  they're going to work with us. And I don't doubt

         19  that their intentions are that at some point they

         20  will work with us. But they're not willing to do it

         21  now.

         22                 They've told the other committees and

         23  the community board that they would work with us,

         24  they will address this issue, too, but they haven't.

         25                 We've had no discussions with them in
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          2  probably six to eight weeks since the Planning Board

          3  told them to work with us. There's been no

          4  concessions. And as the shareholders here today and

          5  the other people that I've brought here with us and

          6  who gave up their time to come here and talk to you

          7  are going to talk about, each one of these people

          8  has specific quality of life issues which need to be

          9  addressed. And there's 57 apartments in our building

         10  which are going to be dramatically and irreparably

         11  damaged by this building, and what we're asking for

         12  at this point really is a concession of about ten

         13  feet that they move their building forward. And I'm

         14  not sure that it would have any affect on them.

         15  There's a couple of different ways that they could

         16  do this which would actually benefit them, and I

         17  don't see why eight to ten feet moving their

         18  building east should cause 57 apartments to be

         19  irreparably damaged and the lives of these people,

         20  some of which have been tenants for 30 --

         21  shareholders, excuse me, for 30 years should be

         22  irreparably harmed.

         23                 And I just want to implore you to

         24  please take a good look at this, because once your

         25  decision is made, there's no going back. These
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          2  people's lives and these people's apartments and the

          3  light and air and the quality of life, some of which

          4  have young children, some of which are elderly, are

          5  going to be irreparably damaged, and it's really

          6  something that I think this Committee needs to hear.

          7                 We have a series of photos from our

          8  building of the various vantage points to illustrate

          9  everything, and I'm going to turn my position over

         10  to Howard Brumer, who is our next speaker, and I'm

         11  just going to move the photos around as he describes

         12  them to you.

         13                 MR. BRUMER: Good morning, Councilman

         14  Avella, and fellow Councilmen. My name is Howard

         15  Brumer. I'm a shareholder and a treasurer of 440

         16  East 62nd Street.

         17                 Basically what we have in our back

         18  yard is a 50-foot opening. Let me just find a better

         19  one. Probably this one here. What we have right now

         20  in our back yard is a 50-foot opening, and the

         21  current plan of the Witkoff Group is to block 17

         22  feet. Right over here to the west of our building is

         23  a building that is 20 stories tall. I'm sorry, it's

         24  200 feet tall. Our building is 176 feet tall. So,

         25  basically for two lines of our apartments, they're
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          2  currently facing a black wall, 50 feet away. The

          3  only light and air that those apartments are getting

          4  are from the south, and the Witkoff Group is

          5  planning on taking away with their current design 17

          6  feet of that 50 feet.

          7                 So, if you're looking over here,

          8  they're going to be going to about right over here

          9  where my hand is, and there's going to be very

         10  little light and air for 57 apartments out of 143 in

         11  the building.

         12                 So, what we're basically asking

         13  Witkoff to do, from the very beginning, from the

         14  first meeting was, can you do something to move it

         15  forward. They did make some concessions regarding

         16  the lot lined windows within the first two to three

         17  weeks, as Cabot had mentioned, of talking with us,

         18  with our attorney, Howard Zipser. But since probably

         19  about June 15th, June 20th, give or take a couple of

         20  days there, there have been no concessions, despite

         21  Community Board 8 saying work with us, City Planning

         22  saying working with us, the Borough President

         23  working with us. You know, we sent e-mails, no

         24  responses. Basically the company line is when we

         25  plan our building, you know, in March or April, then
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          2  we'll talk to you.

          3                 At that point, if you've approved,

          4  and the full City Council has approved, they'll do

          5  what they want to do.

          6                 The issue also that we found out

          7  recently, at least I found out recently, I believe

          8  our attorney knew about it earlier, was that the

          9  parking garage is the problem why they can't move

         10  east.

         11                 They're currently, the current plan

         12  of their building is to be 23 feet west of York

         13  Avenue, yet the zoning would allow them only to be

         14  ten feet west of York Avenue. So there is a 13 foot

         15  play, and what they're saying is the core of their

         16  building, which would allow the perfect parking for

         17  them, is what's stopping them from moving the

         18  building further east. And maybe perhaps they need

         19  to look into the parking. Maybe you can implore them

         20  to look into the parking, maybe if they give up

         21  three or four spaces, that they can save the light

         22  and air for 57 people. That's really what our

         23  concern is, is the light and air, and trying to have

         24  some pressure put on them to make concessions now,

         25  to either shift the building forward somewhat. It
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          2  doesn't have to be the full 13, maybe six, maybe

          3  shave a few feet off the back and go even higher,

          4  instead of being a 27-story building, make it

          5  32-story building, keep the same FAR.  We're not

          6  looking into their pockets, but we just want to keep

          7  the light and air for our tenants.

          8                 MR. MONROE: Okay, I just want to say

          9  good morning, Commissioners. Good morning

         10  Commissioner Avella (sic). This is my second time to

         11  City Hall. Last time was when I was in second grade,

         12  at PS 159 in Bayside, and it hasn't changed much at

         13  all since.

         14                 Mark Monroe. Shareholder at 440 East

         15  62nd Street, and secretary of the Co-Op Board.

         16                 I've been the liaison person with the

         17  Witkoff Group. We started our discussions in

         18  December. I had a good relationship, good dialogue

         19  with the developer, they're keeping us informed as

         20  to what was going on. I think we were making

         21  progress.

         22                 We met with them as a group two

         23  nights before the community board meeting in May. As

         24  Howard said, we addressed our main concern which was

         25  the depth of the tower in our courtyard.
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          2                 We wanted some written concessions at

          3  that time. We were told that it was going to extend

          4  17 feet out of the courtyard. My main concern was

          5  that if we don't get written concessions, how do we

          6  know it won't extend 30 feet, or 35 feet, all the

          7  way to 425 East 61st Street?

          8                 We met with the Planning Commission

          9  on July 27th. The commissioners at that time

         10  suggested that the Witkoff Group and the

         11  shareholders at 440 East 62nd Street have some

         12  dialogue, meet together, try to come to some

         13  reconciliation before their decision is made.

         14                 So, I sent an e-mail to the Witkoff

         15  Group requesting a meeting, telling them how we

         16  would compromise. I never received any response

         17  whatsoever. To be honest, I was a little appalled at

         18  not even receiving a response.

         19                 A letter was sent to the

         20  commissioners from the Witkoff Group on August 3rd,

         21  basically stating that they're done negotiating.

         22  This is the end of the negotiation process.

         23                 As far as they're concerned, they

         24  can't make the shareholders at 440 East 62nd Street

         25  happy, because if they move it further east, there's
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          2  going to be people complaining. It's going to be

          3  blocking their view. If they move further west, the

          4  other people complaining. That's not true at all.

          5  That's not what we said at all.

          6                 Then they basically stated in the

          7  letter about the garage and structure. They wouldn't

          8  be able to support the garage. Well, there are

          9  alternatives to that. Maybe there could be less

         10  parking spaces. Maybe they can move the entrance to

         11  York Avenue. These discussions were never entered

         12  into.

         13                 And, so, after that, we never heard a

         14  word. And here we are today, and we're in the same

         15  situation, and we're really just asking for you to

         16  request from the Witkoff Group before you make your

         17  decision, that they meet with us.

         18                 That as it was stated with the

         19  community board, and as it was stated in Virginia

         20  Fields's office, that they work with the neighbors

         21  of 440 East 62nd Street.

         22                 So, that's what I encourage you to do

         23  today, is before you make your final decision,

         24  please request that they sit with us and come to

         25  some type of negotiation process.
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          2                 Thank you very much for your time.

          3                 MS. BERMAN: Good morning. My name is

          4  Lisa Berman. I am the owner, the shareholder of

          5  apartment 1G and H, which is the ground floor.

          6                 Can you put that, please, the one in

          7  the back up front? Howard, can you point out which

          8  ones are my apartment?

          9                 My apartment is comprised, the whole

         10  wall facing the back, the black wall. When I bought

         11  the apartment in 1986, I asked the girl, I was a

         12  little concerned about the dark in the apartment,

         13  and the woman who sold it to me said, oh, no, it's

         14  fine, come at lunch, and at lunch there's a corner,

         15  there's a back yard out there, and there's a little

         16  tiny corner that gets light, and she goes, look,

         17  there's a lot of light. And since then I joke, and I

         18  say I've got an environmentally-favorable yard

         19  because you won't get sunburned and sun is bad for

         20  you and it's a great place to grow mushrooms.

         21                 I'm a full-time working mother of

         22  twins. I have not been able to go to all of the

         23  meetings. I did go to the on on 79th Street at

         24  Hunter with my children. I didn't get to speak, and

         25  they were all over the place. I had to leave. And
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          2  I'm risking my job to be here today, but it's

          3  important enough for me to be here.

          4                 I have trusted the Board. I speak to

          5  Howard Brumer frequently, and we really have a

          6  problem. I have been trying to sell the apartment

          7  since April. I bought the two, I invested a lot of

          8  money. I have tried to sell it, and given the fact

          9  that the apartment is very dark and this looming

         10  project which is not really clear about how it's

         11  going to be done, everybody walks in and they're

         12  terrified about the light. As well as, when Bed Bath

         13  and Beyond was put in, which was probably about five

         14  years ago, there was a huge rat epidemic. I had

         15  rats, honest to God, coming up in my toilet. The

         16  building and the supers, I see you're looking, they

         17  did not believe it, because how can rats come -- and

         18  if they come in once, they're going to be -- this

         19  rat kept going up and down and they couldn't figure

         20  out how to stop it. And then they said it could not

         21  be stopped, that there's no way to block it off.

         22                 And when the super and the managing

         23  agent was presented with the feces and the hairs

         24  that had been left in my apartment, miraculously

         25  they figured out some way to engineer so the toilet
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          2  would not -- you know, so the rats could not come in

          3  the toilet in 1G.

          4                 So, I am just really begging. I am

          5  stuck. I had one person sign a contract and back

          6  out. And I am just really in trouble because I

          7  cannot sell the apartment, and until we have some

          8  clarification and Witkoff really kind of comes to

          9  the table with this is how we are going to preserve

         10  your light, this is how we're going to preserve your

         11  quality of living during the process, this is how

         12  we're going to control the vermin. We know it's a

         13  fact of life in New York, and I don't begrudge them

         14  their right to do what they have to do, I am just

         15  asking that they really be asked to look at how it's

         16  going to impact us, and to work closely with the

         17  Board so I can tell somebody who wants to buy it,

         18  this is what's going to happen, this is when it's

         19  going to start, this is when it's going to end, this

         20  is what we will do to protect your children from

         21  rats while we're doing it.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         24                 The next panel is Matt Lahey, Larry

         25  Kutcin, Lydia Weitzman, and Nicole Detko.
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          2                 MR. LAHEY: Good morning. My name is

          3  Matt Lahey. I am a shareholder at 440 East 62nd

          4  Street, Apartment 17F. And I would quickly just like

          5  to reiterate and support what Ms. Berman said.

          6                 I am a real estate broker, and I have

          7  been representing Apartment 9G and everybody has

          8  loved the apartment but once they learn of the

          9  Witkoff proposed building, which will I'm sure be a

         10  lovely building, the only concern is the uncertainty

         11  of what's going to happen to the light.

         12                 And, so, I would just like to echo

         13  Ms. Berman's sentiments, that we would love to know

         14  exactly what is going to happen. The lack of

         15  communication is very disconcerting and I hope the

         16  Council members can help us in that area.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MS. DETKO: Good morning. My name is

         19  Nicole Detko. I also reside at 440 East 62nd since

         20  1974. I have here -- first of all, thank you for

         21  taking the time for hearing us. I have here a signed

         22  petition from 99 shareholders of our building, along

         23  with a letter that was addressed to the

         24  Commissioner's office.

         25                 Basically, it is not that we are
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          2  opposed to the construction of Witkoff or their need

          3  to make revenues, what we are requesting is for them

          4  to not to infringe into our light source and

          5  blocking our air, our sun and our light by building,

          6  by infringing 17 feet into the courtyard. We should

          7  come to, you know, if you are planning to give them

          8  the agreement for the zoning, then it should be with

          9  the condition that they do not infringe more than

         10  five or six feet into this courtyard so that they do

         11  not block our light source. It's just as simple as

         12  that. And it will not take away from their income

         13  and their revenue, if they expand the building in

         14  heighth instead of in width.

         15                 The petition is here for you to see.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You can give it

         17  to the Sergeant-At-Arms and they will share it with

         18  us.

         19                 MS. DETKO: I beg your pardon?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The

         21  Sergeant-At-Arms will take the petitions.

         22                 MS. DETKO: Thank you. I'm sorry, I

         23  didn't have a chance to make copies.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's all right.

         25                 Let me just, before you introduce
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          2  yourself, I want to make one quick comment to one

          3  thing that you had said. I think, first of all, I

          4  think you have to understand, we're not approving

          5  the site plan. It is not within our purview to say

          6  where the building goes on the site.

          7                 MS. DETKO: Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So, I mean, that

          9  limits our action here today. But we are obviously

         10  here to sit and listen to your concerns and see what

         11  we can do.

         12                 MR. DETKO: Thank you so much.

         13                 MR. KUTLIN: My name is Larry Kutlin.

         14  I'm an owner at 440 East 62nd Street. My apartment

         15  is facing the black wall, I'm in 10G, and I'm

         16  accepting the fact that they're going to build a

         17  building and they're going to block my air from my

         18  south view, which is from the kitchen and bathroom,

         19  it's the only light or air I have at the present.

         20  And I'm in the courtyard and on the angle I could

         21  still get light and the air, and if they go 17 feet

         22  there, they're going to block most of my light and

         23  air. So, I'll have like almost a dungeon. And like I

         24  said, we'd like to negotiate. Hopefully they'll be

         25  sincere, and whatever you can do for us, hopefully
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          2  to make sure that they try their best to help us, I

          3  would appreciate it, and so would all the people

          4  that live there for many years.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MS. WEITZMAN: Good morning. My name

          7  is Lydia Weitzman. My husband and I have lived at

          8  440 for 27 years with short interruption, where we

          9  had to go to Atlanta. It's been a great building.

         10  The light, the air, the sun, everything is

         11  marvelous, and now we're losing so much of it. So,

         12  before you reach any kind of decision, please make

         13  sure that the Witkoff Group tries to cooperate with

         14  us, does cooperate with us, and gives us something

         15  in writing.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         18                 Next speaker is Howard Zipser. I know

         19  he is outside at the moment.

         20                 MR. ZIPSER: Mr. Chairman, members of

         21  the Committee, thank you very much. My name is

         22  Howard Zipser. I'm a member of Stadtman Bayclhin,

         23  and I appear here this morning on behalf of the

         24  tenant cooperatives of the co-op that we heard

         25  eloquently speak this morning.
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          2                 I usually do not take opposition

          3  work. Frankly, I thought that this matter might not

          4  even be opposition work, rather it would be a

          5  negotiated settlement between a first class

          6  developer and responsible tenant shareholders, and

          7  that's what it appeared to be for the longest time.

          8  And then negotiations failed to be fruitful at some

          9  point, as you heard, and there was either a lack of

         10  communication or a lack of concern or a

         11  misunderstanding of how much light and air was being

         12  actually preserved.

         13                 We have here a series of people, a

         14  group of people, many of them who have lived here in

         15  their units for over 25, 30 years, and in many cases

         16  this is their single most important asset

         17  financially, and their stake in the City, and this

         18  is a very important moment in their lives.

         19                 And I have just been informed that my

         20  client has agreed to continue to discuss with the

         21  developer a possible understanding regarding some

         22  preservation of light and air in the rear yard, and

         23  if this can be reached, we would be able to continue

         24  to support this development and maybe support it

         25  without any kind of reservations.
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          2                 So, we would ask at this time that

          3  you either continue the hearing, or close the

          4  hearing subject to reopening with these negotiations

          5  breakdown. But we really appreciate the fact that

          6  this Committee is concerned about the light and air

          7  and the interests of citizens in the City and we

          8  thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. I'm

         10  happy to in effect say that negotiations and

         11  discussions have been going on while we've been

         12  having this hearing, and I understand now we have a

         13  commitment that I will adjourn the hearing on this

         14  item until the Land Use Committee on Monday.

         15                 Okay, corrected. I'm going to close

         16  the hearing, but we are not going to vote on it, and

         17  we will lay the matter over til before the main Land

         18  Use Committee, at which time we will take a

         19  recommendation and then pass it on to the Land Use

         20  Committee.

         21                 So, that will give both sides the

         22  opportunity to meet and discuss and hopefully come

         23  to a resolution where both sides can be proud.

         24                 MR. ZIPSER: And Mr. Chair, may I just

         25  ask one question? If the negotiations prove to be
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          2  fruitless, do you have the option to reopen the

          3  hearing?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It is always the

          5  prerogative of the chair to take new testimony if

          6  something occurs, you know, that we are not aware

          7  of, and the Chair always reserves that prerogative.

          8                 MR. ZIPSER: Because we hope that the

          9  developer is going to be negotiating, have

         10  negotiations with us in good faith.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I am just going

         12  to be closing the public hearing aspects of it.

         13                 But the Chair always reserves the

         14  right to call additional testimony if need be.

         15                 MR. ZIPSER: Great.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So, this item we

         17  will vote on on Monday before the main Land Use

         18  Committee.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         20  know what time the Zoning is going to be on?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, Land Use is

         22  at 11:30, so the Subcommittee will meet at 11:00

         23  across the street at 250 Broadway, 16th floor.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And that's on

         25  Monday?
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          2                 MR. ZIPSER: Sixteenth floor?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

          4                 Thank you, Howard.

          5                 MR. ZIPSER: Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there is no

          7  one else signed up to speak on this item, I'll close

          8  the public hearing on it.

          9                 We're not done yet, ladies and

         10  gentlemen.

         11                 Okay, next item on the agenda is Land

         12  Use No. 578. C040326 ZMX.

         13                 Please be quiet when you leave the

         14  room.

         15                 Which is an application by Myung Sook

         16  Jun. I hope I'm pronouncing it right. For an

         17  amendment of the zoning map to establish within an

         18  existing R7-1 district a C1-4 district. Property

         19  bounded by a line 100 feet northeasterly of East

         20  Tremont Avenue and other streets.

         21                 I assume the applicant is here or the

         22  architect.

         23                 MR. LIM: I'm representing the

         24  architect.

         25                 Good morning, ladies and gentlemen,
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          2  Councilman Avella and members of Council, my name is

          3  Hyung Jin Lim, representing Chosen Architects

          4  (phonetic), speaking on behalf of our client Sung Ho

          5  Shin.

          6                 The purpose of our proposal is to

          7  enhance the viability of the East Tremont Avenue

          8  commercial strip, increasing the availability of

          9  off-street and side-street parking strips, business

         10  and patrons.

         11                 The proposed action is to provide

         12  private car parking lots for commercial buildings,

         13  on adjacent lot after merging consequently providing

         14  more effective usability of vacant parcel of lots

         15  numbers 56, 58, 60 and 64, instead of leaving the

         16  area deserted without any productive uses.

         17                 Consequently, this will enhance the

         18  companies and business in commercial overlay by

         19  increasing the availability of the off-street

         20  parking.

         21                 We strongly believe that this

         22  amendment is for the better of Honeywell East

         23  Tremont community and I have no doubt that this

         24  amendment will visually enhance the community, while

         25  enhancing its quality in the future.
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          2                 Bronx Community Board No. 6 was very

          3  supportive with this amendment, and unanimously

          4  passed the motion. I also have the copy of the

          5  letter from the Bronx Community. I will go, if it's

          6  okay with the members, I'll go into more details of

          7  the proposal.

          8                 For the action would expand an

          9  existing C1-4 commercial overlay within an R7-1

         10  residential district. The existing overlay covers a

         11  depth of 100 feet along East Tremont Avenue between

         12  Vice Avenue (phonetic) and Third Avenue. The

         13  proposed action will expand the C1-4 overlay an

         14  additional 50 feet northeast-ward between Honeywell

         15  Avenue and Daly Avenue. The underlying zoning will

         16  remain R7-1.

         17                 The extension will cover block 3121,

         18  lots 36, 56 and parts of lots 38, 52, 58, 60 and 64.

         19                 The total rezoning area will be 50

         20  feet by 223rd (sic) feet.

         21                 In the rezoning area, there is a

         22  five-story walk-up residential building with the

         23  retail store and medical office at the first floor

         24  on lot 58. Lot 56 is used as driveway for adjacent

         25  lot 58, a one-story taxpayer, containing one medical
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          2  offices (sic), and two retail stores on lot 60. A

          3  two-story medical office on 64, and two-story

          4  commercial building under construction on lot 33.

          5                 The applicant is the owner of lot 33

          6  and 36. Post extension of C1-4 overlay would allow

          7  the owner to provide a necessary parking lot for six

          8  car (sic) on lot 36. The depth of lot 58, 60 and 64

          9  measures 134 feet, while the depth of C1-4

         10  commercial overlay is mapped at 100 feet. The

         11  proposed extension of the overlay would bring these

         12  lots fully into compliance and allow this business

         13  to provide off-street parking.

         14                 As you see, if you have the picture

         15  with you, in front of you, if you see the photo

         16  number seven, eight and nine, I believe, you see the

         17  condition of the existing area? I strongly believe

         18  that this amendment is better for the community. I

         19  won't state again. And I wish you could make

         20  favorable decision for us. Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Did you want to

         22  say something?

         23                 MR. WHUN JUN: No, nothing. I am the

         24  owner of the property. My name is Jae Whun Jun, the

         25  owner of the property. So, we applied for the zoning
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          2  change and it make sense and it make everything nice

          3  and everybody happy in the neighborhood, and clean

          4  and tidy for the empty lot. The dumpsters, we make

          5  it tidy and to utilizing for new building

          6  construction, using the possibility for the new

          7  construction, new building, as the front of that

          8  property.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there are no

         10  questions for my colleagues, okay? This project lies

         11  within Council Member Joel Rivera's district and he

         12  is okay with the project. Thank you.

         13                 MR. JIN LIM: Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see no one else

         15  signed up to speak on this item, so I'll close the

         16  public hearing on that item. And we will now move

         17  on.

         18                 The next item on the agenda is Land

         19  Use No. 579, C030370 ZMX. It's an application by VIP

         20  Community Services, an amendment of the zoning map,

         21  changing from an M1-2 district to an R7-1 district,

         22  property bounded by Prospect Avenue and other

         23  streets.

         24                 Is there anyone here from VIP

         25  Community Services? How interesting this is. They
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          2  have not met with the Chair of this Committee, and

          3  there is no one here. We have no idea what this

          4  application is about, so at this point we will lay

          5  this over.

          6                 We will now go to Land Use No. 555,

          7  20055657 TCM, which is an application by LaPala LLC

          8  to establish, maintain and operate an unenclosed

          9  sidewalk cafe located at 198 Allen Street.

         10                 Is there anybody here for LaPala?

         11                 Very interesting. This lies within

         12  Council Member Gerson's district. He is in favor of

         13  the application. There was an agreement made, but it

         14  has always been the policy of this Committee, if the

         15  applicant isn't here, we will not vote.

         16                 We will lay this item over as well,

         17  and we will try and reach out to Councilman Gerson's

         18  office to find out what happened.

         19                 Land Use No. 584. 20055640 TCQ.

         20  Application by LCN Cafe Corporation to establish,

         21  maintain and operate an unenclosed sidewalk cafe

         22  located at 10603 Metropolitan Avenue. This lies

         23  within Council Member Katz's district. He has asked

         24  that the item be laid over. We will do that.

         25                 Finally, Land Use No. 585, 20055567
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          2  TCM, which is an application by Le Gans Restaurant

          3  to continue to maintain and operate an unenclosed

          4  sidewalk cafe located at 46 Gansevoort Street.

          5                 This lies within Council Member

          6  Christine Quinn's district. The applicant, the

          7  restaurant has been sold in the process of doing

          8  this application, and since the application goes

          9  with the applicant, not the restaurant, the

         10  application is no longer -- not with the property,

         11  the application is no longer appropriate, and

         12  consistent with Council Member Christine Quinn's

         13  wishes as well, we will disapprove this application.

         14                 I will now ask Counsel to call the

         15  vote. I will just go through it all once again.

         16                 First Land Use Item 462, we are

         17  disapproving. Land Use No. 543, which is College

         18  Point rezoning, we're obviously approving. Land Use

         19  No. 573 in Weprin's district we are approving. Land

         20  Use Nos 574 and 575, we will hold the vote until

         21  Monday at 11:00. Land Use No. 578 in Rivera's

         22  district we are approving. Land Use Nos 579, 555,

         23  584 we are laying over. And Land Use No. 585 we are

         24  disapproving.

         25                 I will ask the Counsel to take the
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          2  vote.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Quinn.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Gioia.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  McMahon.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Seabrook.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Vann.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         21  at five in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         22  abstentions and referred to the full Land Use

         23  Committee.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Anybody who

         25  hasn't had the opportunity to vote, we will hold the
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          2  vote over on the other items, because this meeting

          3  is being recessed til Monday at 11:00.

          4                 Thank you, ladies and gentlemen.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Katz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

          9  at six in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         10  no abstentions and referred to the full Land Use

         11  Committee.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And once again,

         13  this meeting is recessed until Monday at 11:00.

         14                 (Hearing recessed at 11:25 a.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 20th day of September 2005.
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